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I. PRET,IMINAR:T TAf,EUEIIT

Rrrsuant to Rr:Ies 35 ard {0, Fed. R. App. P., the Ccmnoclity E\rtures

Tradirg Ccmmission (rCqmtission')r reslnndent in this appeal, respectfully

reqrests ttrat this Court grant rehearirg en banc of an opinion of a trnnel of

ttris Court issued Novernber 23t 1987. Itrat opinion rerrersed the Ccnmissionrs

deterninatlon in trrc orders ttrat Sntitloner l{anning Stoller ( rStoller')

violated ttre anti-wash sales prwisions of section 4c(a) of ttre Cqrnpdity

Exctrarge Act (the rActr), 7 U.S.C. S 6c(a) (L976).
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Rehearlrg is warranted because the opinion is suscq>tible to a

onstrtrtion ttrat an dministrative a4rency may not institute an enforcement

proceedirg against a trnrceived statutory violation unless it hae previously

articulated by regulation or interpretation that ttre c.onduct at issue is

violative of the statute. Such a prcposition, lf interded by the Court, is

contrary to well-settled principles of adninistrative law established by the

Sutrreme Court in SEtr v. Ctrenery ! 
^tA 

its progeny, ard trntentially rculd

iryeril the enforcement progrExms of nurerors federal agencies with statubry

restrnnsibilities conparable to the Ccmnissionrs.

I[?re panelrs decision considers issrns raised for ttre first tfure in

petitionerrs rqrly brief ard thus not specifically briefed by the Comnis-

sion. Consequently, ttre trnnel has nisappreherded the record and relevant case

Ian insofar as it holds that petitioner cculd not have hd adeguate notice

ttrat his conduct ms unlarrful, and that the Conmisslon exacerbated matters by '

srddenly ishiftirg lts vierys" on illegal wash saLes in the midst of ttris pre

ceeding. In actuality, ttre wash sales interpretation followed in this case b1z

the Ccmmission is the interpretation established ard explained on the public

record by its predecessor agency, ttre Corunodity Excharge Authority (iCEAr)

alnrcst forQr years ago in fn re C,o1dwurm, 7 A.D. 255 (1948). throrghout, the

Ccnrnissionrs focus here was on the statutory prohibition against intentionally

structurirg transactions so as to avoid market risk, regardless of ttre market

ncnenclature for ttrese transactions. Itre trnnel, horerrer, misapprehended that

foors, ard insteacl erroneotrsly concentrated on the irrelevant issr:es of

whettrer trades called 'roll fiormrds' or 'betrind ttre line" rere legitimte

y 332 U.S. 194 (1947) ("Che!gIyE").
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urder the Act ard r+trettrer ptitioner cqrld have been irware of the Comnissionrs

vies on ttris question.

E'inally, as wiLl be stnrm, no prejudice resulted to !tr. StoIIer in arryz

errent. Established lar ms applied, and Stoller initiated transactions prohi-

biteil bl, that established Iaw. To the extent that the Ccrnmission dis4reed

with the CEArs per se conlemration of Stollerrs intention to delay deIivery,

the Cctnmissionr s vler ms ncre lenient larguage. Ttrus, this case presents

issues of exceptional importarrce vlarranting en banc onsideration by this

Court.

rT. FACruAL BACKGRfr]IID

In early liay 1976, petitioner Stoller held lorg trnsitions in ttre rfay 1976

Maine Sntatoes futures contract traded on t}re NnlD(. He believed ttrat ttrere

was a tenSnrary artificial depression in ttre market price for Itlaine trntatoes '|

that upuld soon be corrected, resulting in rising pric.es in ttre finaL dalzs of

trading for that contract. Because NYII{H( regulations provided ttrat deliveries

pursuant to futures contracts rere to be nade first to the traders holding the

oldest lorg psitiors, ard because ttrcse trders vrtp tere amcrg ttre last to

accept delirrery stood to profit ttre nret frqn a trr ice rise during ttre delivery

period, Stoller desired to replace all his preoristirg contracts wittr later

crontracts. H€ aceoq>lished this \r entering selI ard buy orders for the sare

alDunts, virtually sirnultaneously. Bis broker $as instructed to execrrte these

orders at 5rices as near to eactr other as trnssib1e, and rtrhen this had been

acconplished, to use the ner short Ipsitions as offsets to close out the pre
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existirg lorg positions, rather ttran for the nsr log ard short positions to

offset each other as a rday trada.rS/

:Ihe Ccrunission in June 1977 issued an adninistrative corplaint qairst
StoIIer, drarging, inter alia, ttrat this tradirg activity constituted rwash

sales" absolutely prdribited by section 4c(a) (A) of ttre Act. An Aftninistra

tive L*v Judge subseguently granted summary disposition in favor of Stoller.

He found in effect ttrat because Stoller hd dsrronstrated a legitimate market

purtrDse for the transactions, the drallenged trading activity feII outside ttre

wash sales prchibition of the Act. ll?re agencyrs Division of Enforcernent

appealed ttris ruliryl to ttre Ccnunission.

In an opinion issr.red on April 6, 1985 ('Sg]lirsJ"fl tfr" Comnission,

after considering ttre relerrant legislative history and case lar, corcluded

that section 4c(a) (A) was interded to protribit all futures transactions that

give ttre aptrEarance of submttttrg trades to ttre otrnn market rrhile negating the

risk e,r trxice conpetition incident to sr:ch a market, regardless of the nrctivr

tion for the transaction. lthe Ccnrnission corsidered inrnaterial Stollerrs

claim that 'rollirg forwardi was a comrrDn irdustry practlce, both because

prior CEA decisions did not treat ttre purSnse for the wash sales as a relevant

factor to a trnrticiSnntrs liability, ard because it found no corgressional

intent to exenqrt frcm ttre statutory potribitton wash sales having a legitinate

U A nday trailei is a transaction in wtridr a trder enters ard exits the
market in ttre sane day. ft is acconplished by h.ry ard sell orders for
the sane accotrnt, ard the peitions so executed are offset against eactr
otler, leavirg the trader with no otrEn trnsition at the end of the day.
See In the Matter of Linc-olnWqoil Cqqpiities, Inc. of Callfornh,
T15,e 2lfi26
(1984). See also 17 C.F.R. S I.46 (1987). A trder profits or lees
frcm the transaction detrnndirg utrnn ttre ret narket rcvqnent between the
tine he initiates his psition ard ttre tfue he liguidates it by offset.

In re Collins, [1986-87 Transfer ginder] Ccnrn Fut. L. Rep. (CG) | 221982v (iDr. 6, 1986) ('Co4inql').
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market [xrrpose. Bavirg found that Stoller dnitted facts that st4ported a

findirg that he initiated the transactions at issue without ttre lntent to make

a geruine bona fide trdirg trarsaction, the Ccrnrnission conchded ttrat ttre

transactions were prohibited wash sales in violation of section 4c(a)(A).

Collins I, at 311903.

Follorirg the issuance of gollins I, the Chicago ltercantile Excfrarge

(rC!{En) reguested clarification on the theory ttrat ttre Collins I seemed to

prchibit transactions in wtrich trders seek to rninimize market rlsk. llhe

Ccnrnission, in Collins II ,U rcattirmed Collins I ard e:rpJ.ained, inter alia,

that if a trder did no,E structure his transaction to negate risk, he rpuld

not violate Section 4c(a) rerely because he sought to delay delirrery. lltre

Ccrnmission sSncifically stated :

transactions struetured to nrinfunize rather ttran negate risk
or price corqntition in the futures market do not violate
Section 4c(a) (A) n=rety because ttre transaction senres to
ctrange the individualrs trnsition in the delirrery line.!/

Irloreolrer, after affordirg Stoller an optrnrtunity to stpw cause wtry sanctions

should not be imposed against hirn, tle Cqrunission ordered Stoller to cease and

desist frcm furttrer violatiors of section Ac(a) (A) of ttre Act, arrl or8ered hls

associated person registration sustrnrded for tr+enty da)ts. I?ris appeal

follored.

On revis, a panel of this Cirqrlt reversed ttre Ccmmissionrs determinr

tion ttrat Stoller could be fourrt in violation of section 4c(a) (A) of the Act.

Ihe cqrrt found that 'the ptrblic was not adegutely appised ttrat ttre Ccnuni*

sion views rroll forvardr tradirg to be encorpassed within ttre rmsh saler

Y In re Colllns, [1986-87 Transfer Birder] Ccnill. Fttt. L. Rep. (CCA)

I 23,401 (Nov. 26t L986) ('!qlli4E_il').

y Id. at 33'078.
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prdribltion.' (SIip op. at 606f61. ) fn ttris regard, the court observed ttrat

ttre term'wash sa1e" is not defined in ttre Act, ttre Ccrnrnissionrs regulations,

or in anlr interpretative release. liloreorzer, the cq,rrt considered ttre Cqruni*

sionr s findirg of wash sal.es violations to be a sudden ctrange of view wittr

restr=ct to rtrhat are bona fide tradirg transactions. (fd. at 6057. ) Shifting

its focus to ttre question of ttre agencyr s vis of the legiLfunacy of the pracb

tice of trding to delay delivery, ttre 5nne1 acknonledged ttrat ttre CEA hail

previously advised futures corunission nerchants and floor brokers ttrat it
considered traclirg to get behinl ttre delivery line to be furpropr in a nenpr-

andum circulated to ttrem in 1948. Itre trnnel also noted ttrat ttris Snsition was

restated in a 1955 internal nemoranlr.un, a 1959 r.nrpublished nenprandum to

brokers, ard a 1971 letter to the CItlE. Nerrerttreless, the panel stated that it
did not corsider ttrese documents to be sufficient to apprise the ptrblic at

large of ttre CEArs vier, particularly vfien the plicy aplnrently remained

unenforced for years ard the allegedly precribed corduct aplnrently ranraineil

comonplace, as v,as asserted in ttris case. (J,9.. at 6057.)

POTNI I.

rTT. AFGTilENr

lftre Panelrs Q>inion Is Susceptible Ib An Interpretation lltrat
An Agency Cannot Enforce A Statutory Bar Absent Prior
Articulation ey Regulation Or Interpretation, And As Such
Clearly Departs Frcm Well-Settled Judicial Precedent.

lltre panel recogrnizes ttrat an agenqy is free to lnterpret its governing

statute case-b1z-case ttrrorgh adjudicatory proceedirgs, rather than rulemak-

irqrg ard ttrat it rnay annourpe ard apply a nev, standard of ordtrct. (sLip

S/ Chenerv If | 332 U.S. I94 (L9471; NLRB v. BeIl Aercpace Co. , 116 U.S. 267
( 1974 ).



op. at 6}57.ly Horever, the trnne1 states in ttre Fnrltirnate sentenoe of the

opinion that rbecause re hold that the public ms not dequately ryprised that

the Cfirnission virys "ro11 fomardr trdirg to be encontrnsed wittrin ttrc rwash

saler prohibition, we tpld that Sbller may not be held liable urrler that

interpretation for his alleged violation wittr restrect to the contracts at

issue herein.' (Id. at 6560-5I.) l[trus, ttre opinion could be read to stand

for a trorblirg proposition, viz., that before a trnrticular ttreory can be

relied on by a law enforcenent agenry, or before a trnrtiorlar fact lnttern can

be the basis of a violation of federal Iar, there mrst first be a praniors

enforcenent action or sorrE public alrenclf statenrant recitirg that the trnttern

of corduct in question is unlawful. 1[?re fonner ls ccmpletely illogical, as

there must always be a case ttrat corEs first; and ttre secord nearly as mrch

so, because, as the SuSxeme Court has recognized in Chenery II, agencies caIF

not, through prior pr:b1ic interpretations, presuptrDse every conceivable fact

pattern violative of law. 332 U.S. a':202-03i see also Carqill, Inc. v.

Hardin, 452 F.2d 1154, 1163 (8th Cir. 1971) ('[t]he nethod arrl techniques of

rnanlpulation are limiteil only by the ingenuity of man"). .

lfor may the lapse of tfute betrreen the enactnent of a statute and the use

of the statute to preecute a particular ttreory or fact trnttern be held

against the goverrurEnt. Indeed, the Sxotribitions against securities fraud

were enacted in the early 1930rs, but it was nearly 30 years before the

Securities and Drctrange Ccnmission brought its first enforcement case against

insider trading. Cadv, Roberts ard Co., 40 S.E.e. gO7 (Lg6]') y In any

Chenenr II, 332 U.S. at 203.

National Iabor Relations Board v. Maiestic Weavilq Co. r 355 F.2d 854
Itrerer ttris Court

raised the issrre of rrhettrer agency articulation of a ns, rule may be
arbitrary where ttre industry had relied on the agenqy initial rule for

(footnote continued)

v
v
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event, it ls iqnrtant to recogrrize that wash sales nay take rnany different

forms, just as ttrere are varied cleraer and sharp trxactices Htrictr defraud par-

ticltrnnts ln the markets or can be used to manipulate rnarkets. Carqill,

supra. the Couttission m.rst be free to develop the law in this area through

adjudication. Chenery II, al 20L-202.

We will strow in Points III ard r\/ of this argument that the Ccmnrission

did not drange direction, drxl ttrat Stoller ras not prejudiced by ttre Ccnunis

sionrs application of the lan. Rrt, for the purSnses of this Point I, we

stress that ttre lack of clarity in ttre panelrs opinion as to nhen any shift of

position ray have oco.rrred ard how Stoller may have relied on prior interpre-

tations, places in jeotrnrily ttre ability of law enforcerent agencies to prose-

cute illegal activities rrtrich may be similar to but r*rich may differ slightly

fron previorsly identified illegal activities.

POIM II. Contrary To lltre Pane}rs Firdirg llhere Was
Mequate Public Notice Of llhe Cqrunissionrs Viens
On Wash Sales.

l[tre panel t*a" *"a "*" 
tt issionr s

vien of 'rol1 fonrard" tradirg, it seems unlikely ttrat he rould have been able

to tell frqn that irguiry alone ttrat such action ras impermissible. (SIip Op.

at 6058.) As such, the opinion overLooks the significarrce of the CEArs

seminal decision in !ryQp lEtter of Jean Goldnugq, 7 Agric. Dec. 265 (1948)

("9gldrrunn'). In !g!!4g, the CEA expressly ruled that the essential

characteristic of a wash sa1e, atErt fron (and without regard to) the ultfunate

goal or notivation for a wash sale transaction, is ttre "intent not to make a

fifteen !,earsi trorever, it determined not to decide ttrat issue. 355 F.2d
at 861. lrloreover, as will be shoryn in Point r\/, the principle ls in any
case inapplicable here as ttre Ccmnission has not changed its rule to
trntitionerrs &trirent in this case.
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genuine bona fide trdirg transaction.'! As noted in CoLIins f at 311901

n.17, ttre floor broker in ttre transaction in Goldnurm was held restrnnsi.ble for

the wash sale violation in ttre absence of arryz enridence he was amrare of ttre
custcnErrs mtivation in initiatirg the transaction.lV

fn addition to beirg pblicly rqnrted, the colctilrrm decision has been

cited by the Ninth Circuit as authority for the definition of one t16n of

trde prdibited by section tlc of the Act. See, CEI€ v. Savaqe, 611 ?.2d 270,

284 (9th Cir. L979) ('ltre essential ard ldentifying characteristics of a rwash

saler seems to be ttre intent not to nake genrine bona fide trdirg transac-

tions in stocks or ccnuncdities. "g rn light of ttrese public pronourcerEnts,

it was plainly a nis4>prehension for ttre trnnel to fird ttrat ptitioner cqrld

not reasonably have learned of ttre Counissionrs position on such trades.

POINT III. Contrary To lfhe Panelrs Interpretation, lltre Corunissionrs
Orders Under Revienr Are l{ot RL Variance With Eittrer Prior
CEA Precedent Or Ole Another.

As noted, the q>inion strongly suggests ttrat the prejudice to trntitioners

causecl by the purSnrted lack of notice was, if anything, furttrer exacerbated

by the Cqnmissionr s detrnrture frqn previans CEA plicy or precedent. As the

panel construes the orders under rerriew, the Conmission first held ttrat "a11

transactions nhictr give ttre aptrEarance of a bona fide purchase or sale, nhile

y 7 Agric. Dec. at 274.

!9/ Indeed, ln Goldnr:rm, the CEA expressly declined to consider the lawful-
ness of ttre ta:r-nptivated transactions, statirg " [o] f course, the
legitfunacy of the ta:r purtrnse cannot be corrceded, denied, or decided
here.' 7 Agnic. Dec. at 2'12 n.L.

ly lttre trnnel also orrerlooked the public pronouncernent by the CEA in its 1948
Annual Retrnrt To Congress that tradirg to get behird the delivery line
constiBrted wastr trdirg, rdrich was cited at p. 33 of the Cfimissionts
Brief.
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avoidirg arqz actuaL charge in ormership' are illegal, eiting Collins I at

3l,rlgg.g Accordirg to the trnnel, ttre Ccnnrission then 'revlsed its inte4xe-

tation, clalmirg ttrat the statute only pro[ribits transactions ttrat negate

market riskr' citirg Collins If at 331078. As will nm be shorm, ttre Cqnnis-

sionrs orders taken togettrer in actuality follcn CEA precedent on "wash sales'

published almost forty ]rears qro, are consistent with eactr ottrer, and do not

constitute a 'backirg away" in trnlicy.

Ttre Cqnmission in Collins I dhered to ttre C,oldrnrrm lnterpretatlon ttrat

the intent not to make a genuine bona fide tradirg transaction, as qposed to

the intent to actrieve a particular erd (e.9., manipulation, fraud, tEX arzoid-

ance, dtangirg pcitions in the delirzery line), is the essential ctraracteris-

tic of a wash sale violation. Egually significant, Collins I adhered to the

Goldnurm vier^E/ $rat lt,is not essential to a wash sale violation that ttre

buy ard sell orders be executed simultaneously. Firnlly, the Corrnission in

Co4iqg; folloured ttre Goldwurm vier^g Hrat ttre initiation of transactions by

near simultaneous entry of orders for futures contracts wittr instructiors that

they match each other wittr litt1e or no price difference constitutes wash

sales.

lltre prosecution of ttre Cioldnurms was based on a virtually sfumrltaneotrs

entry of orders with instructions that there was an aoceptable range of prlce

differences. 7 Agric. Dec. at 27y76. Ttris corduct $as held to be the

offending elenent, not the purlDse for rfiictr ttre trades rere done. I.d. at 272

lU U;nn cleer reding, the Court will see that ttris reference b1t the
Ccrnmission in Colling I is to an argumnt nrde b1z a litigant before it,
the Division ffiffirent, ard wai not, as the panel found, the holclirg
dopEed by the Counission.

ly See 7 Agric. Dec. at 277.

!!/ See id. at 276-77.
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n.Ii Se note 10, .gg.. In the instant case, Stoller entered the orders

virtually sfumrltaneorsly with instructions to execute the orders aE prices as

near to each other as possible. Collins r, 311898; see also iI.A. 53. Ihe

Cqnnission held ttris constituted a vash sale in violation of Section 4c(a).

I{trile the Ccrnmission follored the CEA interpretation annotrnced in

Go1dwurm, contrary to the trnnelfs misapprehension, it never adopted the CEArs

per se cordenrration of all trdes made to delay delivery. Itte panel igrnores

ttre Connrissionr s clear expression in Col[ns f of its disagreenent wittt the

CEArs expression of a per se approach to "ro11 forward'tradirg. l[tre Comnis

sion stated:

To the extent that the CEA interpreted all trdes nctivateil
by a desire to get behincl ttre delirrcry line to be wash sales
or f ictitious sales under Section 4c(a), rre do not adopt its
interpretation. We rerely hold here ttrat Stoller interded to
avoid makirg a bona .fide market transaction in enterirg the
orders at issue. Unlike the CEA, we do not see a principled
inconpat.ibili$ betneen the rrctive of tradirg to get behird
ttre deliriery line and an intent to make a bona f ide market
trarsaction. Determination of a partyts intent will
inevitably turn on the lnrticular facts ard circumstances.

Collins I at 311903 n.25, ltris larguage is conpletely consistent wittr the

Conunissionrs language in a prrcedural order issued after Collins I hrt before

Collins fI, rfiich ttre panel mischaracterized as a 'backtingl away fron the

srrcepirg language of Collins I.' SIip op. at 5059, citinq | 23rll2 ax 321283

1.2.W

Ls/ lItrere, ttre Ccrunission stated:

Indeed, the record includes a letter dated September 13, 1971 fron
ttre Mministrator of ttre Corurodity Erctrange Authority to ttre president
of the Gricago trlercantile Exdrange expressirg ttre viav that all tr*
irg for ttre purpse of 'getting behind ttre line" ms in violation of
Section 4c(a). llhe Cqnmission did not adopt ttris per se approach ancl
if that is one of the srctrangers @IEerns, it ls misplaced.
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Furthermore, the trnnel erred in asserting that Collins II 'backed away'

frqn !cl}!q!. ftre Ccnmissionrs diso,rssion of negation of risk ln &I1ins II
ls ccqfletely conslstent wittt its discussion of that concept in Collins I. In

Colllns f, $re Cqnnission stated :

the central ctraracteristic of ttre general category of ficti-
tio.rs sales, is the use of tradirg technigues ttrat give the
ap[Earance of submittirg trailes to the otrnn market wtrile
negating ttre risk or price ccmpetition incident to suctr a
market. In wash saIes, for exanple, purctrases ard sales are
made in ttre pit, but ttre financial result is close to or
eEnI to zero. B1z effectively buyirg frcm ard sellirg to
himself, a trader elrlqinates or sharplv reduces hi
IGs. I{oreoverr be rs
ffiten of litLle consequencl as long as a iash result is
actrieved, price ccmpetition may be negated. (Ery)hasis sutr4plied.)

Id. at p. 311902. 1[?re Ccnunission relied on the risk negation standard as the.

critical irguiry in both Collirs I ard Collins II. I{oreover, the trnnelrs

staterent that Collins II adopts ttre position that section 4c(a) only pro-

hibits transactions that do not expose the principals to any risk of market

pice fluctuation, or otherwise modified ttre holding of Collins I (Slip Op. at

5054), is clearly in error.

POINI fV. Itre Gllins Decisiors fn Any Case Did Not Prejudice Stoller.

ltrre panelrs opinion holds that the agency may not charqe a knowirg

violatior9 of a suddenly revised standard ard ttrereblz cause undue gejudice

to a litigant rfio nay have relied on the qlencyrs prior policy or interpreta-

tion. As suptrnrt for that viery, the Court relies utrnn Ruangsrsang v. INS, 591

F.2d 39 (9th Cir. 1978) ("tua!ggg!g'), wtrich helil that agencies may not

!S/ lltre Ccrnmission mrst only pro\re ttnt the restrnrdent interded to ergage in
the conduct prohibited by 1an. ft does not have to trove that the
resSnrdent knops his corduct violates the law. geq Iawrence v. CEIE,
759 F.2d767t 773 (9th Cir 1985); CmC v. SavaqeFlm
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ilrpose unilue hardship b1z su:libnly ehargirg dlrection to the detrinent of those

wtro have relied on trnst policy.

E\ren if it is assrmed that the Cmnission charged its vis at scre plnt
in this proceeding, it does not necessarily follow that ptitioner was treated

unfairly as a result. Ratter, the critical gr.estion is ntrettrer the purported

drange in ttre rule would have exposed the trntitioner to new, previously

unforeseen liability. Cf. Rram*rarg, 591 F.2d at 440 (agencry action

invalidated ntrere lntitioner was exposed to nevr liability pursuant to later

agency interpretation imposirg an additional requiranent).

C1early, ptitioner in this case Has exSnsed to no such additional risk.

If anythirg, the Cqunissionrs willirgness to consider tron StoIIer structured

his transactions and its refusal to limit its consideration soleIy to his

motivation amounted to the application of a m)re lenient standard. Had the

Cqnmission simply followed the CEA Er se rule of absolute liability, peti-

tioner autonatically rould have been liable for a Section 4c(a) violation

because he had repatedly admitted ttrat ttre ctrallenged trades rere designed to

get behirxt the delivery 1ine. In these circunstances, where trntitioner corld

have reasonably known about t}re -9. se standard and ttre purtrnrted ctrange bene-

fiteil the litigant, the Cqrunissionrs result should not be held unreasonable or

unfair.

POIM V. lltre Panel Erred In Declinirg Eittrer To Affirm The Cqrunissionrs
Ru1irg On Surmnary Dispsition Or To Resnand Ihis Case For A
Eearirg.

mony

that

f ide

Ttre Cqnnission continues to believe that petitionerrs detrnsition testi-

corstitsrEes uncontrovertible proof ttrat he ergaged in wash tradirg, ;!g,
he entered his uay 1975 orders with ttre intent to avoid a genuine bona

SeetrdirE transaction. Joint Apperdix (rJ.A.') at 32t 35t 36, 4Lt 47,
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48, 52-54. 1ltris testinony clearly shows that: 1) petitioner entered orders

simultareouslyi 2) he bought ard sold the sarne or sirnilar prices; 3) he did

not care aboilt the particular price for ttris trdes; 4) that his rmarket not

held' instruction signalled to his broker ttrat he had discretion to wait untll

tradirg activiQr in the pits nas such that both buy ard sell orders conld be

executed at a virtual price match; and 5) ttrat his position in ttre market did

not charge in arqr material restrnct. Itris testitnony clearly sr44nrts the

Ccnmissionrs infererrce that trntitioner intentionally structured his buy and

sell orders so that a virtual price match cculd be actrievsd.U Petitioner

has cIafurcd ttrat, notwittrstanding his "market not heldn orders, he also

instructed his broker to offset his preoristirg lorT, psitiors before estr
blishirg his ns lorg trnsitions. the Ccmnission recognized that StoLler had

given such an instruction so that his pr:rdrases ard sales did not offset each

other as day trades. Collins I at 311898-99; J.A. 35-35. llhe existence of

this instruction is not in dispute, ard is in no rrEnner inconsistent with the

inference ttrat Stoller interded to negate risk ard to avoid any bona fide

trailirg transaction. Absent a firdirg ttrat ttre foregoirg lnferences by the

Ccnunission r{ere unreasonable or arbitrary, these firdirgs should have been

permitted to stard. See, e.9., Quarles v. General Motors Corp., 758 F.2d 839,

840 (2d Cir. 1985).

If the corrt does not agree that this proof is dispositive of peti-

tionerrs intent to execute a msh trde, ttre rypropriate course rould be a

rsnard of this case to ttre Cqnmission for a hearirg. Ttre 5nne1 recognizes

ttrat under normal circunstances the irntrxoper resolution of a case on sulrlEtry

ly Indeeil, the testimorry of trntitioner at J.A. 53 demnstrates tlnt petl-
tioner interdecl to arioid precisely ttre trrice risk in ttre hypothetical
"narket sale followed bv instructions' recited by the trnneI. (Slip Ql.
at 6060.)
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jdEnent is grannds to rgnarrt the case for further proceedirgs. RKO Generalr

Inc. yr__EQCt 670 P.zd2L5t 226 n.32 (D.C. Cir. 1981). Nevertheless, the

panel ruled that a rgnard is inapproprlate here because the trnrceived absence

of adeqnte prior notice of ttre Cqrunission construction of ttre term rwash

sale" constituted an in<rrrable defect ln Etre proc.eedirgs. Slip Ql. at 6056.

A.s shorn, ttre urderlyirg principles rftich governed the Comnissionrs

disSnsition of the trades at isse here rrere in fact a matter of trubIlc record

for a1npst forty ],ears, ard thereby satisfiecl any reasonable standard of

a@uate notice. In these circtrmstances, it ms clearly error for the trnnel

to have concltrcled ttrat a renand wor:Id not be appropriate.

CO}THTSIOT

Itre Court stpuld grant rehearing en harrc ard affirm the Commissionrs !

orders.
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